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If you are searching for some clarifications about the rules, let's have a look at these FAQs.

These are official and checked by Mr Richard Borg.
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If you can't find the answer over here you could try posting your question in the official CCN-FORUM. 
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Combined Attack
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Can a Combined Arms Combat be declared with a Bonus Attack?
[image: image2.jpg]


Yes, a Combined Arms Combat may be declared with a Bonus Attack. It´s possible, to save the battle dice of any ordered Artillery, to support a Cavalry in any attack (initial or breakthrough bonus attack)!
Example: You may support a CAV attack in their first attack with a first ordered ART and support the CAV in their bonus attack with a second ordered ART, or you support only one of these attacks.
[image: image3.jpg](?)



I don't see any prohibition against making a combined arms attack on what I call the Jackie Robinson card ("cold steal") when you have artillery and another unit both adjacent to the target. Artillery at range 1 are considered to be in melee, so presumably they can be ordered with this card. What we did was give the bonus die to both the arty and the other unit. Does anyone see any problem with this?
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When the Give Them The Cold Steel card is played and both artillery and infantry or cavalry units are adjacent to the enemy unit if a Combined Arms attack is announced both units will roll one additional die.

Guerilla Marker
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If a French player’s command card is canceled with a successful Guerrilla Marker, may the canceled Command card be counter attacked by the Spanish player?

[image: image6.jpg]


The Spanish player may play a Counter Attack Command card and use the canceled Command card. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - July - 16)
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If the spanish player uses a successful guerilla action on one Command Card, which allows a player also to draw a Tactician Card, can the player(s) still draw a Tactician Card at the end of turn or is this also canceled?
[image: image8.jpg]


When a guerrilla action is successful, the French player’s Command card is discarded along with the drawing of a Tactician card.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - November - 11)
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After cancel a played "Scout" card with a Guerrilla action, can the player still pick up 2 cards and choose one between them two?

[image: image10.jpg]


We play that a Scout card canceled by Spanish Guerillas will cancel issue an order to 1 unit or leader and will also cancel the draw two, choose one and discard the other portion of the card. The French player should only draw a single Command card.
(Richard Borg)
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A successful Guerrilla Marker cancels the (french) players turn, but how affect a successful GM marker any TC`s?

Especially TC´s which can be played "additional" or "at the turn end" as

Call Forward Reserves, Capable Tactician, Leader Bonus Orders, Leader Unit Reform, Short Supply
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Can i play/use these cards, also if the normal command card is canceled with a GM? 
[image: image12.jpg]


Actually the way the Spanish Guerrilla Action rules are written, a successful action will nullify all French orders being issues on a given turn after the French player plays a Command card, but before the French player orders units.

It may seem that some of the Tactician cards, you are asking about, when read literally, could still be played even after a successful Guerrilla Action. For simplicity sake, I feel it is better to not allow any Tactician cards to be played on the turn after a successful Guerrilla Action. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - December - 16)
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Taking Ground

[image: image13.jpg](?)



Can a unit, which moved onto a fordable river (or forest/town or another terrain, which "stops" movement), take ground after a sucessfull battle ?
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No. As the rule is written, an unit or leader that enters a Forest, Town, Fordable River (or any similar other) hex must stop and may move no further on that turn. Taking ground is not possible after a unit enters a Forest, Town, Fordable Rivers or similar hexes.
This includes also any Take Ground or Cavalry Breakthrough, if an unit moves onto a lone leader hex, see the movement rule “A unit may move onto occupied by a friendly leader when the leader block is alone in a hex. The unit must stop and move no further on that turn. The leader is considered attached to the unit.”
Square
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The basic rules states, that no command card or other special rule increase the dice number of a cavalry unit, which attacks the square. But what is about the new Tactician Cards, it´s nothing in the exp. 5 rules?
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Nothing increase the 1 battle die, which a cavalry unit has against a square, this includes also any benefits of the new Tactician cards.
[image: image17.jpg](?)



Does a Lancer Cavalry get a reroll against a Infantry in square, if he roll a flag with its die?
[image: image18.jpg]


Yes - A lancer unit will reroll a flag when attacking a square (including flags of combined attack)
(Richard Borg: 2018 - 06 - 24)
So Richard´s intention here is, a Lancer reroll is not a "basic additional" die because of any cards e.g., but its a reroll of a battle result (flag symbol),
although the final result of the reroll can be an additional hit/retreat.
[image: image19.jpg](?)



Can a Cavalry, which attacks an Infantry in square formation, ignore the bouncing flag with an "Iron Will" marker?

[image: image20.jpg]


The bouncing flag cancels ALL rules, which may ignore a flag.
For example: Supporting Units, Attached Leaders, Unit own skills an all other special rules we have already as "Iron Will" or we get still in future (and if there is once a rule in future, which would allow it, then the rule would state it explicit)
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 I understand that when a Cavalry unit initially engages an Infantry unit and the Infantry unit chooses to form square that it gets the first shot in the ensuing melee. What about later melees initiated by the Cavalry if the two combatants remain adjacent? Simply put, does an Infantry square always get the one die roll first against cavalry?
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 Yes. An infantry unit in square will battle first against a cavalry unit in all melees. Exception: when an infantry square is ordered to attack a cavalry unit, a First Strike card may be played on the cavalry unit and the cavalry unit would attack the square first.
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May an infantry unit in square with enemy cavalry in an adjacent hex be issued an order and, if  another friendly unit chases the pinning enemy cavalry away during the Combat phase, may the ordered infantry in square immediately come out of square and battle with its full allotment of dice?

[image: image24.jpg]


No. Coming out of square happens during the orders phase.

An infantry unit that is ordered to come out of square may move and/or battle normally. An infantry unit coming out of square that does not move may conduct ranged combat without any movement battle dice reduction.
[image: image25.jpg](?)



Has the basic rules of a square,  "While an infantry unit is in square it may not move",
always survival, indifferent of a played Command or Tactician card, or can i move a unit into square with a 

Tactician Card “Leader Order a Fall Back, Call Forward Reserves” e.g?
[image: image26.jpg]


”Units in sqare can´t move” is a permanent basic rule, which can never changed with any existing or upcoming
rules (cards, special unit or nation rules e.g.)

(Richard Borg: 2015 - November - 24)
Garrison Marker

Note: A Garrison marker and Infantry block, by definition, will occupy a hex. Therefore, a Garrison marker and Infantry block occupying a hex will fulfill a victory objective condition that requires a building, walled garden or walled farm to be occupied by an army.
Additional rules clarificatons: Richard Borg, 2016-05-21
• A Garrison marker can not move, but it need a corresponding command card order to battle
• Basic terrain rules do apply (in- and outside) to determine the number of battledice, when a Garrison block is battling and when a Garrison block is being attacked
• A Garrison marker is hit on range with INF and FLG symbol and in melee additional with the XSW symbol. Note, also units which usual don´t hit in melee with XSW, hits a Garrison marker with XSW.
• A Garrison marker can never ignore a flag result of any reason 
• A Leader can attached to a Garrison marker
• A Garrison Marker can´t provide support other units (to ignore flags for those units)
[image: image27.jpg](?)



"An Infantry unit with two or more blocks that occupies any building, walled garden or walled farm hex....."

Whats the meaning of building, include this all kinds of town hexes? And what´s about fieldworks?
[image: image28.jpg]


 Buildings include all kind of town hexes, but not fieldworks.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - November - 18)
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"Can a unit retreat or retire&reform onto a hex which is occupied by a friendly garrison?
[image: image30.jpg]


 A friendly unit may not retreat or retire&reform onto a hex with a Garrison Marker. A Garrison Marker occupies a hex and therefore will block a unit’s retreat.
(Richard Borg: 2016 - May - 16)
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Battle Back
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 If you use a FIRST STRIKE card: "Your defending unit will battle first." Does this mean that the defending unit will not Battle Back, even if eligible to do so? 
[image: image32.jpg]


The defending unit that plays a first strike is not eligible to battle back when it has used a First Strike card to battle first. Each unit may battle only once in same battle, only the order of battle may change because of any special rule or special card.

Note: If a attacker forces to retreat a defender and battle again against the same defender (with a Cavalry Breakthrough e.g.), it´s a “new” battle.
Grand Battery
[image: image33.jpg](?)



 Does a Grand Battery need only 1 order for the complete GB or an order for each single ART in the GB? 
[image: image34.jpg]


 Each Artillery unit in a Grand Battery needs to be given order. One or more artillery units, when ordered as a Grand Battery, may only engage in ranged combat. For simplicity sake and to avoid a list of exceptions and possible clarifications, a Grand Battery may not combine his dice in melee.
(Richard Borg: 2016 - March - 27)
Sequence of Drawing Command & Tactician Cards
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 The rules don´t state any sequence of drawing command and tactican cards. So it´s possible, drawing first any Tactician Cards and then any Commannd Cards and keep the Command Card(s), which fit best to the TC. Is this action right and allowed ? 
[image: image36.jpg]


 There is really no rule to the order of how cards are to be drawn. Our group draws all the cards and decides what Command Card to discard after the Tactician Card is seen.
 (Richard Borg: 2016 - 09 - 25)


Grenadiers (Spanish and Russian)
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In the Russians rules BOTH the Spanish and the Russians grenadiers DO NOT have +1D when they battle-back. They have +1D in melee in all the other situations. In the other hand we do not find any rule saying that the French or English grenadiers do not have +1D when they battleback?
So the Spanish & Russian grenadiers would be the only one with this strange special rule?

[image: image38.jpg]


Sorry for not catching this bug earlier. Both the Spanish Grenadier and Russian Grenadier suffer from the same bug and the Battle details in their respective rule books for these two units should read:
Spanish Grenadier
Range Fire Standing: 1 die per block 
Range Fire Moving: dice equal to 1/2 number of blocks rounded down
Melee and Battle Back: 1 die per block, plus 1 die.
Russian Grenadier
Range Fire Standing: 1 die per block 
Range Fire Moving: dice equal to 1/2 number of blocks round up
Melee and Battle Back: 1 die per block, plus 1 die.
Note that the words "Battle Back" was inserted with Range Standing and these words should actually have been placed after Melee. Good catch guys! I guess that players would come to realize this bug in time because a unit cannot battle back in ranged combat. Again I am very sorry for the error.
(Richard Borg)
Line Infantry (Prussian)
[image: image39.jpg](?)



Get the Prussian Line Infantry the +1 die in Melee if they use “First Strike”?

[image: image40.jpg]


The Prussian Line Infantry unit don´t get the +1 die when using the “First Strike” Command card.
Possibly the better way to write the rule would have been: When a Prussian Line Infantry unit is ordered and does not move, or the unit is battling back, roll 1 additional die in melee.
Light Cossack Cavalry
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"Unit will ignore forest terrain melee combat dice reduction"

Does this mean, Cossacks move onto a forest hex and can still battle?

[image: image42.jpg]


Exact! Russian Cossacks, ignore forest terrain melee combat dice reduction and can move onto a forest terrain hex and battle. Note, that movement rules for a forest hex still apply to Cossack units. 
(Richard Borg: 2015-March-10)
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"Unit will ignore forest terrain melee combat dice reduction"

Includes this rule also terrain with lower restrictions than forest, orchard/vineyard e.g.,

and/or terrain as “Walled Garden”, which refers to the forest rules?
[image: image44.jpg]


No, the special terrain battle rule of Cossacks apply to forest terrain only! 
(Richard Borg: 2018-10-18)

Militia Lancer Cavalry
[image: image45.jpg](?)



"No saber hits except Initial saber hits or saber hits on flag re-rolls vs. lone leaders"

Does this mean, that Militia Lancers hits all Units with a XSW result?
[image: image46.jpg]


This passage refers to lone Leaders only! 

So Militia Lancers don´t hit any unit with XSW, only lone Leaders. And in such a battle, the Leader would also hit on the additional (Flag rerolled) XSW result.
Guard foot artillery
[image: image47.jpg](?)



Get the Russian Guard Foot Artillery also the +1 die in melee as the French Guard Foot Artillery?
[image: image48.jpg]


Yes, the Russian Guard Foot Artillery get also the +1 die in melee 
Richard Borg; 2016, February 06
Guard horse artillery
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Get the French Guard Horse Artillery also the +1 die in melee, or is it a mistake in the charts?
[image: image50.jpg]


Yes, the French Guard Horse Artillery get also the +1 die in melee 
Richard Borg; 2016, February 06
Rocket Battery
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Must a Rocket Battery reduce the battle dice because of their own terrain hex?

[image: image52.jpg]


- A rocket battery, when in some types of terrain, melee dice are reduced, just as a horse artillery unit would be reduced. 
- A rocket battery, when in some types of terrain, ranged combat dice are not reduced. By the rules, a rocket battery will for the most part always roll 2 dice in ranged combat. 
(Richard Borg, 2015 - July - 13)
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Is the Rocket Battery a kind of artillery and can i order it with Command Cards, which refers explicit to any Artillery units (Bombard, Cavalry Charge e.g.)?

Further can i use all Tactician Cards for the Rocket Battery, which refers also to Artillery (Artillery Canister, Artillery Combat Bonus, Artillery Reposition)?

[image: image54.jpg]


A Rocket Battery is classified as an Artillery unit and therefore will benefit from Command and Tactician cards that refer to artillery. 
In regard to the sentence –
In ranged combat, a Rocket Battery always rolls 2 dice unless increased by an appropriate Tactician card. 
A better wording of this line would have been - In combat, a Rocket Battery always rolls 2 dice unless increased by an appropriate Command card and/or Tactician card. 
(Richard Borg, 2016 - April - 08)
Horse Artillery
[image: image55.jpg](?)



 A 3 strength Horse artillery moves adjacent to an Infantry unit and declares a melee attack. The Infantry plays First Strike, and reduces the HA to 1 block an a moving HA with only 1 block cannot battle.
Q: Can the HA still battle, because it´s movement was before it was reduced to one block

[image: image56.jpg]


The Horse Artillery unit could battle before the First Strike card is played, it can still battle after the First Strike even with a single block. The Horse Artillery battles then with the strength of the left 1 block! 

This would follow the logical play of the game.
(Richard Borg, 2019 - May - 05)



Fieldworks
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When a Saber is rolled on the Pre-Battle Mother Russia Roll, may a 2 sided field works only be placed on a hill, forest or town hex, or may a field works be placed on a bridge, church windmill terrain hex?

[image: image58.jpg]


On a Pre-Battle Mother Russia Roll, when a Saber is rolled it does not restrict the placement of a field works hex with 2 sides to just a unit on a hill, forest or town hex, fieldworks can be placed also on a hex that does not have any terrain . The Mother Russia Saber bullet's final sentence reads, "If a unit is already on a terrain hex, replace the terrain hex with an available terrain hex that contains the terrain and field works." The key word is available  terrain hex. Currently there are no official scenarios that have a Russian infantry or artillery unit on a bridge, church or windmill hex, therefore GMT did not include these terrain hexes with a field works in the mix of terrain tiles in the Russian expansion.
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If a town has a field works does the unit ignore a flag?

[image: image60.jpg]


A unit on a hex with a field works, being attacked through a field works hex side, will allow an infantry or artillery unit to ignore one flag. Battle restrictions for the terrain the field works is on will still apply. Note that field works on a country side hex (no terrain hex) will apply field works battle restrictions.
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May a Russian Line infantry unit that is being attacked through a field works side of a hex ignore two flags, one flag for the field works and one flag because it is a Russian Line unit?
[image: image62.jpg]


Yes.
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Is the rule found in the Russian expansion, that an infantry unit can form square when on a field works hex apply to the core game and Spanish expansion as well?
[image: image64.jpg]


The rule that allows infantry on a field works to form square when being attacked by cavalry not across a hex side with a field works does indeed apply to the core game and all expansions.
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Is a unit in square (able to man the walls, therefore) still able to ignore one Flag of attacks comming through the Field Work hex sides OR they lose that terrain bonus because being in square?
[image: image66.jpg]


A square on a field works hex should be able to ignore 1 flag when the attack is across a hex side with field works 
(Richard Borg : 2014-September)
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"A Field Works provides protection along the forward facing hex sides." How does this exact work?

[image: image68.jpg]


It works exact as the "fences" rules in Battlecry, see charts below.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - July- 30) 
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Expansion 3 – Austrian Terrain Tiles
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Did the walled farm tiles come with this expansion? As I noticed them in the rule / scenario book. 
I have 18 tiles but none of them are of a walled farm.

[image: image72.jpg]


The incorrectly printed terrain tile sheet in C&C Austrians is being reprinted and will be included at no charge in the upcoming C&C Prussians. There will be extra free copies for those who do not purchase C&C Prussians.
Fordable River
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If a unit is moving or battling from one fordable river hex to another, do fordable river penalties apply?

[image: image74.jpg]


Yes


Bridge
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 Design question or would like to hear opinions: It’s odd that bridges do not have a melee penalty. It’s tough to fight across bridges. Narrow front, easy target vs. fire.
[image: image76.jpg]


 Scenario specific special rules for fighting across a bridge are planned for the future. A bridge and for that matter a river or stream, keeping with the scale of the game, only occupies a portion of a hex.
Church
[image: image77.jpg](?)



 If victory conditions refers to "town" hexes, does the church count for VP as town objective also?
[image: image78.jpg]


 The church count as "town" hex for Victory Conditions (except the scenario notes states otherwise)

(Richard Borg: 2014 - July)



General
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Can a portuguese general be attached to a british unit, and vice versa?
[image: image80.jpg]


All leaders and units for the nations you command are considered friendly. Unless the Scenario Special Rules prohibit it, one nation's leader may attach to any other national units that you command. 
And all units on the same side as such a friendly Leader, benefit all bonus of this Leader.
[image: image81.jpg](?)



Can a Leader fullfill any objective hex victory condition?

[image: image82.jpg]


All kinds of "Objective Victory Banners" can only be fullfilled by units and not by Leaders (remember rulebook page 7,  “A Leader is not a unit, and is represented by a single block."

except, the scenario notes described it explicit otherwise.
[image: image83.jpg](?)



Does a friendly leader in one of the two hexes that cavalry need retire into block the action? For instance, in the example on page 16 of the rules, if there was a friendly leader on either of the two wood hexes, can the cavalry retire and reform?

[image: image84.jpg]


A cavalry without an attached leader may Retire and Reform one hex onto a hex that contains an unattached friendly leader (i.e. a leader alone in a hex). The leader is immediately attached to the unit and the cavalry unit does not have to retire and reform its second hex (it must stop then on Leaders hex).
Examples: If a Cavalry retire then 
1. Cavalry without attached Leader stops onto a hex with a lone friendly LDR 
2. Cavalry without attached Leader may not move through a hex with an enemy LDR/unit or friendly unit (basic rules) 
3. Cavalry with attached Leader may not moves through a hex with an enemy LDR/unit or friendly unit (basic rules) 
4. Cavalry with attached Leader may move through a hex with lone friendy LDR (basic rules)
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Can a retreating Leader escape through a hex with a lone enemy Leader?

[image: image86.jpg]


Yes.
[image: image87.jpg](?)



If a leader can escape through a hex with a lone enemy Leader, how many dice would the lone enemy leader roll?

[image: image88.jpg]


The leader when alone does not battle, so no dice are rolled.


Leader Escape
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How do i determine the number of dice during a Leader Escape roll.

[image: image90.jpg]


By a leader escape roll, no Terrain- and Command Cards rules apply. Only own skills of an unit or special formation limits (Square for example) can increase or decrease the number of battledice.
Example 1:
Q. A Leader escapes through an enemy (3Block) Heavy Cavalry, which is in a town hex. How many dice the HC rolls to hit the leader?
A. 4 dice
Per the Leader Escape Procedure Rules: Move the leader onto the enemy hex and allow the enemy unit in the hex to battle the leader. The attacking unit uses its normal number of melee combat dice. In this case Heavy Cavalry will roll 4 dice. The leader does not benefit from terrain in the hex.
Example 2:
Q. If a leader escapes through an enemy Infantry unit in square formation, how many dice rolls this infantry unit roll to hit the leader?
A. 1 die
Per the Leader Escape Procedure Rules: Move the leader onto the enemy hex and allow the enemy unit in the hex to battle the leader. The attacking unit uses its normal number of melee combat dice. In this case 1 die, because one die is the maximum number of dice an infantry unit in square rolls in melee.
Leader Casualty Check
[image: image91.jpg](?)



 The Extension 5 (Marshals and Tactician) rules states: With the Generals, Marshals &Tactician rules, a Leader alone in a hex, may now be targeted in ranged combat (targeting in melee combat has always been allowed). When a Leader is alone in a hex, the attacking enemy unit rolls its normal ranged battle dice. Two saber symbols rolled will score a hit and eliminate the Leader. If the Leader is not hit, the Leader must retreat 1, 2, or 3 hexes. Flags rolled against the Leader have no effect on the unattached Leader.
So at least 2 battle dice are needed, to kill the leader. 

Nevertheless is it possible, to attack the lone leader in range combat only with a single dice attack, which can´t kill him (because 2 XSW are needed), but to force to retreat him after the attack?
[image: image92.jpg]


The following note will be added to the updated rules on page 6, under Leader Casualty Check.

Note - A lone leader may not be targeted when rolling less then two dice. Also note - sabers normally will not score a hit in range combat, however, firing at a leader alone in a hex is an exception to this rule.
Richard Borg, 2017-12-05
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015 – Waterloo (18 June 1815)
"Impetuous British Cavalry”. Any victorious British cavalry unit must advance into the vacated hex after regular or bonus combat. Victorious British cavalry must also advance the extra one hex after regular combat if one or more vacant hexes are available (Allied player’s choice of hex). 
What does this 2nd part exact mean?
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The second part was poorly worded. The second hex must be toward the French mapedge. If more than one such hex is available, the Allied player chooses.
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"Impetuous British Cavalry”. Any victorious British cavalry unit must advance into the vacated hex after regular or bonus combat. Does this rule apply for british Cavalry only or also for the "allies" Cavalry (brown blocks).
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The special rule apply only for the british Cavalry units (red blocks).
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A Walled Farm terrain tile hex effect has been updated to allow a unit on a Walled Farm hex to ignore one flag.
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It is suggested that players replace Hougomont and La Haye Sainte town tiles with Walled Farm tiles and use the updated effect.

202 - Golymin (26 December 1806)
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Count the Cossacks in the scenario Golymin (also in other scenarios, in which "off board" evading units counts as VP), as Victory Point too, because they don´t count as Victory Point if they are destroyed?
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Yes, a Cossack unit will count as 1 VB when ordered to exit the battlefield in such scenarios.
Note, if units must retreat, they can´t use the retreat to leave the battlefield and must stop on board edge and loose blocks as normal, for each hex, they can´t retreat.
208 – Heilsberg – Opening Phase (10 June 1807)

[image: image101.jpg](?)



It is not clear if the fork in the river terrain belongs to the fordable Bevernick Stream or the impassable River Alle?

[image: image102.jpg]


The fork is considered to be part of the impassable River Alle.
311 – EGGMühl – Day 2 Attack on Eggmühl (22 April 1809)
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When the baggage train block reaches St. Michael is the block removed?

[image: image104.jpg]


Yes, the Austrians receive 2 VP and the baggage train block is removed.

317 – St. Michael-Leoben (25 May 1809)
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When the baggage train block reaches St. Michael is the block removed?
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Yes, the Austrians receive 2 VP and the baggage train block is removed.
319 – Wagram – MacDonald´s Square (6 July 1809)
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"The French player gains 1 Victory Banner at the start of the turn for each town hex occupied"
[image: image108.jpg]


Is that a Temporary or Permanent Victory Banner?

It´s a Temporary Victory Banner Objective Hex (this would be the exact wording)
320 – Wagram – Davout at Markgrafneusiedl (6 July 1809)
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What are the exact victory conditions for the hills and the rows between hills and edge?

[image: image110.jpg]


- The French player gains 1 Temporary Victory Banner for each hill hex occupied (along the line of hill hexes). 
- The French player gains 1 Temporary Victory Banner for each hex between the line of hill hexes and Austrian baseline that a French unit occupies at the start of the turn. 
The only hill hex the French do not receive a Victory Banner for when it is occupied, is the lone hill hex in the French right sector.
405 – Halle – Morning (17 October 1806)
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Have the 2 ford river tiles any other/additional rule to the other fordable river, because the scenario notes says only the entire river is fordable?
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The entire river system of the Saale (both rows) is fordable. The shallow fords do not stop movement.
(Richard Borg: 2014 - October - 30)
411 – WAREN-NOSSENTIN (Nossentin) (1 November 1806)
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The river tiles are impassable, but what about the "open terrain" tiles, which represent the Lake Fleesen? Are they also impassable?
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In the Waren-Nossentin scenarios, the river tiles are actually represent the start (shoreline) of the lakes. The hexes (open hexes) behind the river tiles are still part of the lake and are also considered impassable terrain

(Richard Borg: 2016- March - 15)
418 – Ligny (16 June 1815)
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"The Ligny brook has no battle restrictions, but stops movement and will break charges. Meaning, a cavalry unit on or that crosses the stream when ordered by a Charge card, will not gain the additional dice listed on the card." 
What does this exactly mean?
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A bad phrasing here, better wording is:
" The Ligny brook stops movement, but an infantry unit after a successful melee may take ground and a cavalry unit may breakthrough. In addition, cavalry unit ordered by a charge card, that attacks into, out of, or when it moves across or moves across on its breakthrough, will not gain the addition dice listed on the charge card.."
Please note: This rule(s) apply only for the non bridge river hexes; The bridges use their normal basic rules!
510 – Möckern – French Right (16 October 1813)
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The objective Victory conditions are a little bit unclear, how many hexes must be occupied and 

how many VP the players get.
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- The Allied Player gains 1 Temporary Victory Banner at the start of the turn for occupying each town hex of Gross Wiederitzsch and Kline Wiederitzsch. The Allied Player can possibly gain three Victory Banners if all three town hexes are occupied.
- The French player gains 1 Temporary Victory Banner when no Allied units occupy any of the three town hexes of Gross Wiederitzsch and Kline. The French player starts with 1 Banner. The most the French player can gain 

is 1 Banner. Note, this Temporary banner can be gained and lost immediately during a turn. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 09)

511 – Möckern – French Left (16 October 1813)
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How am i supposed to field 3 Prussian Grenadier Units ? My Prussian Expansion only came with 2 and the GMT Expansion has no extra Grenadiers
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It´s a mistake in the scenario picture/setup!

The Prussian Grenadier unit on row three (in front of the other two grenadier units) is supposed 
to be a Foot Artillery unit.

(Richard Borg: 2015 - December- 06)


514 – Chateau-Thierry (12 February 1814)
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Get the French player 1VP for each bridge or only 1.
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- The French player get 1VP for each bridge, he occupies.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 09)
515 – VAUCHAMPS (14 February 1814)
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In this scenario "Blücher" get only 3 Tactician Cards, in all other existing scenarios he get 5 TC´s. 

Is this a mistake in scenario notes or is it correct?
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- Three is correct Blücher was in all kinds of trouble at Vauchamps.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - November - 01)
518 – Hougoumont (18 June 1815)
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"The French player gains 1 Victory Banner if 3 full strength British units do not occupy the British baseline"

Does this mean, that only british unit counts or also british allies (brown blocks) ?
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 British allies units would also count.
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 05 - 16)
605 – Austerlitz – Russian Guardsmen (2 December 1805)
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 The setup shows 3 unit Russian Guard Light Cavalry, but  there are only 2 units available (if you have the corresponding game boxes). Is this a mistake in scenario picture or is a unit missing in any game box?
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 It´s a mistake in the scenario picture. The Russian Guard Light Cavalry unit on the left side of the map should indeed be a Guard Light Infantry unit. There are therefore two Guard Light Infantry units in this section of the battlefield.

 (Richard Borg: 2017 - 01 - 03)
606 – Austerlitz - Soult Attacks South (2 December 1805)
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 Allies units dont retreat in this scenario. But what happens, if a (lone) Leader must retreat?
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 An Allied leader does not retreat in this scenario either. If a lone leader that must retreat it will require the leader to take a casualty check and stay in his hex, if he survive.

 (Richard Borg: 2016 - 05 - 12)
General

Note: All old command card rules/answers apply also the new command card deck, except the new command card FAQ would state it otherwise 
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When is the Mother-Russia-Roll to be applied? Before or After drawing Command Cards?
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Please do the Mother Russia roll BEFORE drawing Commands Cards
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Some Command Cards like Leadership, Bayonet Charge, Cavalry Charge, Bombard e.g., gives special/different benefits to the special units, which are named on the cards. But if i choose the substitute order order one unit of your choice, apply the benefit also to this alternate single unit?
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No, the single unit, which is ordered with the substitute order, don´t get the benefits of the card and act with his own basic rules.

Bayonet Charge
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When an Austrian Militia or Line Infantry unit is ordered by a Force March or Bayonet Charge Command card, the unit may only move a maximum of 1 hex, but how many hexes move such a unit with an attached Leader?
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When an Austrian Militia or Line Infantry unit is ordered by a Force March or Bayonet Charge Command card, the unit may only move a maximum of 1 hex. An attached leader does not allow an Austrian Line or Militia Infantry unit to move 2 hexes when ordered by a Force March or Bayonet Charge. 
(Richard Borg: 2013 – October 27)
La Grande Manoeuvre
[image: image137.jpg](?)



While playing LA GRANDE MANOEUVRE must be the terrain restrictions observed or can be ignored?
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 Units or leaders ordered by the Grand Manoeuver card will follow all normal movement rules and any terrain movement restrictions.
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Why should I choose the substitute order of one unit, because I can with the special order up to 4 units and move them up to 4 hexes.
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It makes sense sometime, to choose the substitute, because you can move and battle with the units own base rules then!

Fire and Hold
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May i order only Infantry or only Artillery units?
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The card should read exact "Issue an order to 4 or fewer INFANTRY and/or ARTILLERY units", so you can order up to 4 ART and INF units together
[image: image143.jpg](?)



Whats happens, if units/LDR retreats adjacent during range combat.
Can the ordered unit, still battle, its a melee then, and get they +1 bonus die?
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The Ordered unit could not battle because the card specifies Ranged Combat. Since you choose the order of combats, you should be careful to have this firing unit fire first. 

First Strike
NOTE: Rules/FAQ for First Strike and Short Supply (which are now a part of the tactician deck) remain the same, no changes. It is just a reminder. 

(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 11)
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 Page 22, FIRST STRIKE card: "Your defending unit will battle first." Does this mean that the defending unit will not Battle Back, even if eligible to do so? 
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The defending unit that plays a first strike is not eligible to battle back when it has used a First Strike card to battle first. Each unit may battle only once in same battle, only the order of battle may change because of any special rule or special card.

Note: If a attacker forces to retreat a defender and battle again against the same defender (with a Cavalry Breakthrough e.g.), it´s a “new” battle.
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Play this card after opponent declares a melee attack, but before the dice roll. Your defending unit will battle first. Can it only be used against one melee attack or if opponent melees twice can you use it against both separate melees ?
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The card can be used for one melee attack. Not more. If your same unit gets melee attacked twice you have to choose to use it for the first attack, or hope it can sit it out and use it for the second.
You can use more than one First Strike card per turn if you have multiple. One for the first attack, one for the second, if you like.
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If a Cavalry unit attacks an Infantry unit and the Infantry plays a "First Strike" card, 

may the Infantry form Square then?
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No; If the Infantry Play a "First Strike", they accept the "full" battle of the attacker, if the attacker is not destroyed or forced to retreat. But if the Infantry is forced to retreat by the CAV attack, the INF may form square, if the CAV makes a Cavalry Breakthrough and battles again the INF (because this is a "new" battle).
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Can a player in his own turn play/discard a First Strike card without ordering any units, drawing a new command card, which ends their turn?
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Yes. The "First Strike" card is treated as all other command cards too, so the players are allowed to discard this card as "useless" card, as it is described in the rulebook "Phase 1 - Play a Command Card".
(Richard Borg: 2014 – August – 23)
Scout
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After cancel a played "Scout" card with a Guerrilla action, can the player still pick up 2 cards and choose one between them two?
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We play that a Scout card canceled by Spanish Guerillas will cancel issue an order to 1 unit or leader and will also cancel the draw two, choose one and discard the other portion of the card. The French player should only draw a single Command card (Richard Borg)
Short Supply
NOTE: Rules/FAQ for First Strike and Short Supply (which are now a part of the tactician deck) remain the same, no changes. It is just a reminder. 

(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 11)
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Can a unit be 'tele-ported' back to the baseline with Short Supply card?
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The unit (except a unit in square) may be indeed teleported, also across a impassable river, for example!
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Can i short supply a unit onto a board hex, which cut off the player then from further battle?
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Yes. If this is the only hex available, a unit could be cut off as you put it.

Force March
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When an Austrian Militia or Line Infantry unit is ordered by a Force March or Bayonet Charge Command card, the unit may only move a maximum of 1 hex, but how many hexes move such a unit with an attached Leader?
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When an Austrian Militia or Line Infantry unit is ordered by a Force March or Bayonet Charge Command card, the unit may only move a maximum of 1 hex. An attached leader does not allow an Austrian Line or Militia Infantry unit to move 2 hexes when ordered by a Force March or Bayonet Charge. 
(Richard Borg: 2013 – October -27)
Elan
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After played a Elan card, when the decks are reshuffled?
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Reshuffle at end of turn, before players draw to refill their cards in hand. So it can happen, that any player draw immediately again the Elan card.
Example: Player A plays an Elan card, order a unit and wants to attack an enemy unit. Player B plays now a First Strike. After both players resolved their battle and results, the card decks are reshuffled and the player with FS draw first, then the initial player, which played Elan.
Cavalry Charge

[image: image163.jpg](?)



What is the interaction between a Cavalry Charge Command Card and a hex with redoubt?

[image: image164.jpg]


Cavalry does not loss it charge bonus when attacking across a hex side with field works.
Probably not the best use of cavalry, charging across a hex side with field works, but it is possible. If you look at it another way, I guess a few of the horsemen made it over the field works :) 

(Richard Borg: 2014 - September) 




Note: All old command card rules/answers apply also the new command card deck, except the new command card FAQ would state it otherwise.
Guerilla Action / Marker
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 Gaining Guerrilla Action Counter
[image: image166.jpg]


 When playing a battle with the 90 card deck of Generals Marshals & Tacticians Command cards the rules on how to gain additional Guerrilla Action counters are revised as follows:

During a battle a player (standard scenario may acquire one additional Guerrilla Action counter each time he plays a Scout Command card. With the following restrictions:

• Instead of drawing two Command cards at the end of the turn, the player only draws one Command card and one Tactician card.

(Richard Borg: 2017 - 08 - 29)
Take Command
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"When leader is attached to a unit, so long as the leader remains with the unit, that unit is also ordered." 
Does this mean that you may order an attached Leader also as single leader to move him away from the unit and let back the unit in "unordered" status?
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An attached Leader may be ordered to move away from the unit and the unit remains unordered
The rule is: You have 4 (5 with a leader of honor) "commands" to spend to order units/leaders and the rule not only refer to the leader on the initial unit/leader, but also to adjacent units with attached leaders!

- Unit with attached leader (leader stay by unit) = 1 command

- Unit with attached leader (leader detach from unit, unit stay unordered) = 1 command

- Unit with attached leader (leader detach from unit, unit move/battle separate) = 2 commands

(Richard Borg: 2015 - August - 13)

Take Command Any Section
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If countering Take Command Any Section, must it be played in the same (opposite) section as the original card?
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Take Command Any Section, when counter does not have to be in the same section.
However, Take Command Right when countered is Take Command Left, Take Command Center is Take Command Center and Take Command Left is take Command Right when countered.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - October- 16)



General

NOTE: A player, who plays a Tactician card during his or the opponent’s turn, does not immediately replenish his Tactician card hand. Replenishment of Tactician cards is only done at the end of a player’s turn when the Command card played instructs a player to draw a Tactician card.
- The usage of the Tactician Cards is optional.
- All Tactician Cards must be already in players hand at turn start, to allow their playing 
- No unit (also with attached leader) and no single leader can get more than 1 Tactician Card each turn.

Tactician Card default Action
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 Can i detach a leader from a unit into square with a Tactician Card default action or apply the basic rules and this is not possible?
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 The default action of a Tactician card, allows a leader to reposition, which is not really ordering the leader.

Therefore a leader that is attached to a unit in square may detach from the infantry unit in square by using the default action of a Tactician card.

(Richard Borg: 2016 - February - 28)
Artillery Reposition
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How can this card used together with a "Bombard" command card, because both cards are either contradictory or to powerfull (if you are allowed to move 6 hexes e.g.)?
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The two cards really do not work together, therefore the combination of both cards are not allowed.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 28)
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The Fire and Hold command card is similar as the Bombard command card. So the Artillery Repositon tactician card can´t used togethre with "Fire and Hold" also?

[image: image176.jpg]


Right. Because the Fire and Hold Command card states, “Units may not move before or after combat…” would not allow the Artillery to reposition.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - July - 07)
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Is a battle of the ART compulsory required to use 2nd option "or move 2 hexes after it battles" or is the battle not mandatory as all battles.?
E.g. A cavalry and artillery does a combined attack, but CAV is forced to retreat/bounced, so the ART lost his battle option. Can the ART
use the TC and move 2 hex yet?
Another example if the Cavalry battles first independent and is bounced again and blocks now the Line of Sight of the ART, so the ART has no target?
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The artillery unit does not have to battle in order to move 2 hexes. If it was ordered to battle and some action caused it not to be able to battle, it is still considered to have battled in reference to the Tactician card 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - July - 07)
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If i play La Grande Manoeuvre, can i move then additional 3 hex with Artillery Repostion?

No! The usage of Artillery Repostion along with LGM would make no sense, because Artillery Repostion would reduce the movement from 4 to 3 hex.
(Richard Borg: 2015 - July - 11)
Battle Back Bonus
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 If a defender/passive player, plays a first strike (or similar) card, can the attacker/active player use the Battle back Bonus card if he "battles back" then?
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 First Strike card (and similar cards) states “battle as originally ordered”. The combat after a first strike is not a battle back.
(Richard Borg: 2010 - 10 - 30
Break The Square
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Must it played in order phase, or can the active player wait, if the opponent goes into square, to decide then, if he want use it?
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The “Break The Square” Tactician card is played just before a cavalry unit is going to attack an enemy infantry unit that is in Square (immediate before the Cavalry rolls the dice). 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - May - 22)
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Does a unit into square loose their square formations and what is the sequence of battle with this card?
[image: image185.jpg]


An infantry in square will not lose its square formation, when the “Break The Square” Tactician card is played against the infantry unit in square.

The sequence of play is:

1. The CAV unit declares the attack.

2. The INF unit goes into square, and a command card is removed from the player's hand (unless an Austrian INF unit, forming a battalion mass)

3. The INF unit rolls 1 combat die against the CAV. If the result is a bounce flag, the combat is over (if CAV can retreat).

4. The CAV unit now plays the Break the Square card. The CAV unit rolls normal combat dice against the INF unit.

(Richard Borg: 2016 - February - 14)

Capable Tactician
NOTE: A player may look through the Tactician card discard pile prior to playing the “Capable Tactician” card to see what Tactician cards are available. When an Elan card was played, the card decks are reshuffled before the player draws cards. Drawing cards ends a player’s turn.
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If i read it correct, it makes no sense, to play this card after a Elan was played, because then are no left cards into the Tactician discard pile, before i make any choice?
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You read the note correct. I guess we could of stated “When an Elan card was played, the card decks are shuffled before the player draws cards. Because after shuffling, there are no Tactician cards in the discard pile, a Capable Tactician card will have no cards in the discard pile. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - May - 26)
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”At the end of your turn, discard this card and draw one Tactician card from the discard pile of your choice. The card selected may not be played this turn”
Does this mean, i can´t choose a tacticain card from discard pile, which are used from any player in current turn.
Example: A player use a Infantry Combat First TC. At the end of turn, he plays Capable Tactician and want to draw back this card, is this possible?
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 This means, any Tactician card may be selected that is in the Tactician card discard pile, which would include any of the cards played during the current player’s turn. 
And in the example above, would include the First Strike Tactician card.
The last sentence on the card, “The card selected may not be played this turn.” is written to prevent the play of a Call Forward Reserves Tactician card and a couple of future Tactician cards that state “play at the end of your turn".
(Richard Borg: 2015 - November - 11)

Call Forward Reserves
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How many options do i have, to place the reinforcements, 2 or 3 (not clear about wording)?
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There are only 2 options. 
1. move the unit onto a hex with a lone leader (leader hex can contain any terrain hex) 
2. move onto a hex that is adjacent to a leader, but this hex cannot have any terrain feature or be occupied by another unit. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - July- 26)
Leader Unit reform
NOTES: It is important to note that the Leader Unit Reform action takes place before any units are ordered. A unit may therefore reform, but the unit does not have to be ordered on the turn.
Light infantry skirmish

NOTE: A light Infantry unit that moves will battle with one-half the number of blocks, rounding up or down, depending on the National army. The light Infantry unit may not melee. Other units may battle before and/or after the skirmishing light Infantry unit in the combat phase. However, immediately after the skirmishing light Infantry unit’s ranged combat is completed, the unit must either move back to the unit’s original hex or remain in its current hex.
Charge if Charged
NOTES: A Charge if Charged Tactician card may be played any time your opponent declares a Cavalry melee against one of your Cavalry units, not just when an enemy Cavalry unit is ordered by a Cavalry Charge card. The words ‘Charge if Charged’ in the title of the Tactician card are for historical effect only.
In the possible situation, where one of the Cavalry units must retreat, but its path is occupied by units (friend or foe), an enemy Leader, impassable terrain or the edge of the battlefield and the unit cannot retreat, one block is removed for each hex the unit cannot retreat.
In the possible situation, where, both Cavalry units must retreat, but one unit’s path is occupied, preventing the unit from retreating, one block is removed for each hex a unit cannot retreat, prior to either unit actually completing any of its retreat movement.
In the possible situation, where, both Cavalry units must retreat, and both units’ paths are occupied, preventing these units from retreating, one block is removed for each hex the unit cannot retreat, prior to either unit actually completing any of its retreat movement.
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If a player play this card with a Lancer unit, does the Lancers get the "flag reroll dice"?
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The “Charge if Charged” Tactician card means the both units are considered to be attacking. Therefore when the Charge if Charged Tactician card is played on a lancer unit, it would reroll flag results. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - October- 07)

Leaders Orders Fall Back
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May the falling back unit move also through friendly units too or only through non-impassable terrain?
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Only through terrain that is non-impassable. The Fall Back may not be made through friendly units. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 22)
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Because only unit symbols hits an unit and the flags are ignored for retreats, are the flags also ignored for the "Lancer reroll"?
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Because only unit symbols rolled will score a hit, all other symbols, flags and sabers that would normally take effect are ignored. Therfore no lancer reroll here. 

(Richard Borg: 2019 - 08 - 28)
Sappers
NOTE: An ordered Infantry unit ignores all terrain hex combat reductions, when a “Sapper” Tactician card is played on the unit in melee.
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Does the Sappers benefit from battle out- and inside? Are units allowed to battle if they move onto a terrain, which prevent normal battles?
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The card works only for the target hex, so all movement and battle rules for the attacker hex still apply
(Richard Borg: 2015 - June - 22)
Short Supply
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Can a Short Supply be used on a lone LDR?
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No. Card specifies moving one units, and by definition, leaders are not units.
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Can a unit
 be 'tele-ported' back to the baseline with Short Supply card?
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The unit (except a unit in square) may be indeed teleported, also across a impassable river, for example!
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Can i short supply a unit onto a board hex, which cut off the player then from further battle?
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Yes. If this is the only hex available, a unit could be cut off as you put it.


Battlefield Smoke
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If an Attacker makes a “Grand Battery” or another “Combined Attack”,  are the complete summary dice reduced to 2 dice or only the battle dice of each single unit.
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 When Battlefield Smoke is played before a Grand Battery (Combined Attack) dice are rolled, the number of dice rolled in the Grand Battery (Combined Attack) combat is reduced to a maximum summary of 2 dice. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - November- 13)
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Can the Battlefield Smoke card used only by the “Defender” or also by the “Attacker”.

Example: Attacker (CAV) announce a melee against another CAV (Defender), the Defender plays First Strike
Can now the Attacker use the Battlefield Smoke?
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 Yes, the Attacker could use the Battlefield Smoke in this situation also. The only restriction on playing the Battlefield Smoke Tactician card is it is played after a combat is declared, but before the dice roll. Of course, if the unit already used a Tactician card this turn, it would not be able to play a second Tactician card. 
(Richard Borg: 2015 - November- 13)
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 May the Attacker general await if the Defender plays a Battlefield Smoke and then playing itself a Tactician Card to increase the dice again?
Example: Attacker (CAV) announce a melee against another CAV (Defender), the Defender plays Battlefield Smoke.
Can now the Attacker play a Cavalry Leader to increase the number of dice?
[image: image211.jpg]


 No, the order in which these two Tactician cards must be played, forces the attacker to first declare the use of the Cavalry Leader Tactician card. 
Cavalry Leader - Play this card when the melee combat is announced.

The number of dice are determined for the attack and then before the dice are rolled the defending player would play the Battlefield Smoke Tactician card, which would only allow the attacking unit to roll 2 dice.

(Richard Borg: 2015 - November- 13)
Superb Infantry Training
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How many dice would a British Line Infantry roll with this card, especially get the brit. LN the +1 die for standing fire?
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A unit fires with the number of blocks but a british Line Infantry would not get the +1 die, because they moved (a unit don´t halve his dice because movement, but all other movement restrictions apply).

(Richard Borg: 2015 - July- 30)
Leader Bonus Orders
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 What is the exact time to play a Leader Bonus Orders TC, here together with Rally Command card.

Must i order the additonal unit before the Rally roll or after.
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 The Leader Bonus Orders Tactician card is played along side the play of the Rally Command card.

Roll the battle dice to rally units, units that are rallied are ordered. The player will after the roll choose, with the Leader Bonus Orders Tactician card, now order a unit in addition to the units that are rallied and are ordered.

The key words on the Tactician card are “in addition to the orders on the Command card”.

(Richard Borg: 2015 - November- 19)
Infantry Forward leader

EXAMPLES:
An ordered Infantry unit may normally move 1 hex and battle, but when an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is played on the unit with an attached Leader, the unit may move 2 hexes and battle. When an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is played on a light Infantry unit with an attached Leader, the unit may move 2 hexes and battle or has the option to move 3 hexes and not battle.
An ordered Infantry unit, with an attached Leader, when ordered by a “Bayonet Charge” Command card may normally move up to 2 hexes and melee, but when an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is played on the unit with an attached Leader, the unit may move up to 3 hexes and melee.
An ordered Infantry unit, with an attached Leader, when ordered by a “Force March” Command card may normally move up to 2 hexes and battle, but when an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is played on the Infantry unit with an attached Leader, the Infantry unit may move up to 3 hexes and battle.
An ordered Light, Grenadier or Guard Infantry unit, with or without an attached Leader, when ordered by a “Force March” Command card may normally move up to 2 hexes and battle, but when an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is played on a Light, Grenadier or Guard Infantry unit with an attached Leader, the unit may move up to 3 hexes and battle.
An ordered Infantry unit, with an attached Leader, when ordered by a “La Grande Manoeuver” Command card may normally move 4 hexes and not battle, but when an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is played on the unit with an attached Leader, the unit may move 5 hexes and not battle.
An ordered Austrian Line infantry or Militia Infantry unit is limited to only move 1 hex and battle when ordered by a “Bayonet Charge” or a “Force March” Command card, but when an “Infantry Forward Leader” Tactician card is also played on an Austrian Line infantry or Militia Infantry unit with an attached Leader, the unit may move 2 hexes and battle. 
Inspired Infantry Leader
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 "An ordered Infantry unit with an attached LEADER, after a melee combat in which the enemy unit is either eliminated or retreats from its hex, may take ground and may make a second melee combat."
Can an INF with attached Leader use this card also after an attack to an opponent Cavalry, which retire&reform?
[image: image217.jpg]


 Yes, because an infantry unit can Take Ground after the cavalry unit vacates the hex. 
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 05- 22)



General rules corrections & clarifications
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 Page 13 - First Column top of page - original text reads: ...“draw one Command card or draw one Tactician card”,...
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 Correct text: When a player does not order any units and/or leaders to March Move, the Corps commander may draw one Command card and draw one Tactician card at the end of the turn. 
What this means, is when playing a La Grande Battles scenario and the Corps commander does not use the Corps Command Stars to March Move units, the player will draw one Command card and one Tactician card. Note at the bottom of a Scout, Leadership and Elan Command card it also instruct a player to draw a Tactician card at the end of the turn. It is therefore possible that a player would draw two Tactician cards at the end of the turn.

(Richard Borg: 2017 - 08 - 29)
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 Corps Commander cards: There are two possibilities, to get as Corps Commander new Command Cards.

1: He can get a Command Card at turn start from the CiC as standard card to order units in his section

2: At the end of the turn, if one or more Scout cards was played, the CiC draw 2 cards and give one of those 2 cards to the Corps Commander

3: Can a Corps Commander in those situations increase his number of cards in his hand and is there a general limit of command cards for the Corps Commander?
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 1: The Command card from the CIC cannot be saved when a Corp Commander is playing a Command card from his hand, the CIC’s Command card must be discarded. 
2: When a Command card not chosen by the CIC after drawing two cards after the play of a Scout card and is given to a Corp Commander at the end of the turn, the card is kept and the Corp Commander’s hand of Command cards is increased. The Corp Commander does not have to discard a Command card. 

3: There is no limit to the number of Command cards a Corp Commander can hold.
(Richard Borg: 2017 - 08 - 29)
Epic Courier Rack
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 If a Elan command card is played, are the cards on the courier rack also reshuffled? 
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 When the Elan card is played any cards on the Courier Rack are not shuffled into the Command card deck. The cards remain on the rack. 
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 08 - 29)
Command Card – Counter Attack
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 If I counter any tactic command card on a section, may I play the counter in my turn on any section or must it played in the same section as the initial command card?
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 In Epic / LGM battles, a Counterattack must be played in the same section, as the card which was countered.

(Richard Borg: 2016 - 09 - 12)
Tactic Command Card
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 If i play a Tactic command card, e.g. Cavalry Charge, must i play it on a section, on which a referring unit is available, or may i play it on a section without a Cavalry (e.g.) to order one unit of choice?
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 In the Epic / LGM game, a Command card like a Cavalry Charge card must played in a section that contain the appropriate units ( Cavalry units in this example). Only if there are no appropriate unit on hole battlefield, you may  play it on any section to use the option „unit of your choice“.
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 09 - 12)
Guerilla Action / Markers
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 Gaining Guerrilla Action Counter
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 During a battle a CIC or a Corps Commander (EPIC & La Grande Battles) may acquire one additional Guerrilla Action counter each time he plays a Scout Command card. With the following restrictions:

• Instead of drawing two Command cards at the end of the turn, the player only draws one Command card and one Tactician card.

• The 3 Corps Command Stars may not have been used to March Move units.

• Also in an EPIC and La Grande Battles scenario, the player must also have at least four Spanish units in his section(s) to gain a Guerrilla Action counter.
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 How many Guerilla Markers can i play in a players turn, so can i play more than one GM in an Epic/LGM battle, and if a GM cancels one played card, is the other card action still played?
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 Only one Guerrilla Action counter may be played on the French player’s turn in an attempt to stop one French Command card being played. If one French Command card is stopped, the second Command card is still played.
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 If a multisection card is played in an Epic/LGM battle, can such card canceled by a Guerilla Marker?
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 La Grande Battle: In a La Grande Battles Napoleonic scenario, a multi-section Command card (Recon in Force, Coordinated Advance, Flank Attack and Forward) is given to a Corps commander and therefore may be stopped by the play of a Guerrilla Action counter. As the rule is written, a Guerrilla counter that a Corps commander holds may only be player in an attempt to nullify a Command card played by his opponent in his section.
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Epic Battle:  In an EPIC Napoleonic scenario, a multi-section Command card (Recon in Force, Coordinated Advance, Flank Attack and Forward) cannot be stopped by the play of a Guerrilla Action counter. Basically, a multi-section Command card in an EPIC scenario is not given to a player and therefore is not played in one section. To keep the rule the same for all EPIC player versions (2, 4, 6, and 8 players) a multi-section Command card cannot be stopped by the play of a Guerrilla Action counter. 

Scenario EPIC 01 - Austerlitz
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 “The 4 hexes that make up Stare Vinohrady (old vineyards) form a Temporary Majority Group Victory Banner worth 2 banners for the side that occupies an absolute majority at the start of its turn. The Allies start with 2 Victory Banners.”
There are only 3 hill hexes in the setup of the scenario booklet?
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 It´s a mistake in the scenario booklet. The Vinohrady Heights has 4 hexes in the Epic scenario. 
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 08 - 31)
Scenario LGB 01 - Austerlitz
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 It´s not clear, which terrain hexes form the Temporary Majority Group for 
 the "Pratzen Heights" and "Stare Vinohrady" 
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 It´s a mistake in the scenario booklet. The Pratze Heights has 6 hexes and the Stare Vinohrady has 5 hexes in the La Grande Battle scenario. 
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 08 - 31)
Scenario EPIC 12 - Laon
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 “The setup shows 7 prussian leaders, but we only have 6.

5 in Prussian expansion and 1 in the Epic Expansion. Is it a mistake in the scenario setup or is a Leader missing in any game box?
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 It´s indeed a mistake in the expansion 6 game box, there should be 2 prussian leaders into box instead only 1. (Richard Borg: 2017 - 01 - 18)



Victory Banner Explanations

To reduce the amount of text in a scenario’s briefing notes, the following terms are used to describe some common Victory Banner Objective Hex conditions:

NOTE: Leaders occupying Victory Banner hexes will not count as units for purposes of control.
NOTE: Garrisons occupying Victory Banner hexes will count as units for purposes of control.

NOTE: All Turn Start Victory Banners (temporary and permanent) are awarded at the start of a player’s turn. 

All other Victory Banners (temporary and permanent) are awarded during a player’s turn when earned. 

All Temporary Victory Banners, whether gained at turn start or during the turn, are lost at the moment
the condition for award is no longer fulfilled.
Temporary Victory Banner Objective Hex 
The Victory Banner in this objective hex is gained immediately when the appropriate side occupies the hex. The Victory Banner is held only as long as a unit of the appropriate side holds the hex. If the unit vacates the hex for any reason (movement, retreat or elimination) during its own turn or during the opponent’s turn, the Victory Banner is immediately lost and placed back in play in its original position on the objective hex. 
Temporary Victory Banner Objective Hex (Turn Start) 
The Victory Banner in this objective hex is gained when a unit of the appropriate side occupies the hex at the start of its turn. If the unit vacates the hex for any reason (movement, retreat or elimination) during its own turn or during the opponent’s turn, the Victory Banner is immediately lost and placed back in play in its original position on the objective hex. 
Temporary Group Victory Banner Objective Hexes 
A number of hexes together form a Group Victory Banner ob​jective. The appropriate side that occupies all of the objective hexes will immediately gain one or more Victory Banners. As long as all objective hexes are occupied, the Victory Banners will count. If any hexes in the group are not occupied for any reason (movement, retreat or elimination) during its own turn or during the opponent’s turn, the Victory Banners for the group are immediately lost.
Temporary Group Victory Banner Objective Hexes (Turn Start) 
A number of hexes together form a Group Victory Banner objec​tive. The appropriate side that occupies all of the objective hexes at the start of its turn will gain one or more Victory Banners. As long as all objective hexes are occupied, the Victory Banners will count. If any hexes in the group are not occupied for any reason (movement, retreat or elimination) during its own turn or during the opponent’s turn, the Victory Banners for the group are immediately lost. 
Temporary Majority Victory Banner Objective Hexes 
The Victory Banner for this group of objective hexes is imme​diately gained when the appropriate side has units occupying an absolute majority of hexes in the group at the start of its turn. Absolute majority means to occupy more of these objective hexes than your opponent. Occupying one hex when your opponent occupies none, for example, would be an absolute majority. The Victory Banner is retained as long as the side has an absolute majority. The Victory Banner is immediately lost when a side no longer has an absolute majority. 
Temporary Majority Victory Banner Objective Hexes (Turn Start) 
The Victory Banner for this group of objective hexes is gained when the appropriate side has units occupying an absolute majority of hexes in the group at the start of its turn. Absolute majority means to occupy more of these objective hexes than your opponent. Occupying one hex when your opponent occupies none, for example, would be an absolute majority. The Victory Banner is retained as long as the side has an absolute majority. The Victory Banner is immediately lost when a side no longer has an absolute majority. 
Permanent Victory Banner Objective Hex 
The Victory Banner in this objective hex is gained immediately when the appropriate side occupies the hex. The Victory Ban​ner, once gained, is not returned or put back in play, even if the unit later vacates the hex for any reason (movement, retreat or elimination). 
Permanent Victory Banner Objective Hex (Turn Start) 
The Victory Banner in this objective hex is gained when the appropriate side occupies the hex at the start of its turn. The Victory Banner, once gained, is not returned or put back in play, even if the unit later vacates the hex for any reason (movement, retreat or elimination). 
Breakthrough Objective 
When a player’s Victory Banner objective requires his forces to achieve a Breakthrough, each unit that exits the battlefield from an opponent’s baseline hex, gains that player one Permanent Victory Banner. To exit, the unit must be ordered and move off the battlefield. A unit must start its turn on an opponent’s base​line base​line hex to exit off the battlefield and thereby gain a Permanent Victory Banner. 
Time Pressure Objective 
When Time Pressure rules are in effect against the attacker, the defending player, after playing a “Scout (Left, Centre or Right)” Command card, may take a Permanent Victory Banner and draw one Command card instead of drawing two Command cards at the end of his turn. Taking a Permanent Victory Banner, instead of drawing two Command cards is not allowed, if doing so would give the player his final Victory Banner to win the battle.



Objective VP hex – Unit retreat/Retire&reform
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 The town hex is a Temporary objective (not a turn start) for british player.

Get the british LC the objective town hex if it retreat/retire&reform onto it?
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 A1: A retire&reform unit can´t get the VP, because of the VP rules:

“All other Victory Banners (temporary and permanent) are awarded during a player’s turn when earned”
Retire&reform don´t happen in the players (retire&reform unit) turn! 
[image: image243.jpg]


 A2: A retreating LC however can get the VP, if the retreating takes place in the players (retreating units) turn

Example: It is the british player turn, and the LC attacked the french LN.

French plays a First strike and rolls 2 flags. Now the british LC retreats still in his own turn onto the objective town hex.
(Richard Borg: 2016 - 05- 16)
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